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We are certified public accountants licensed to practice in Michigan.
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Check each applicable box below. (See instructions for further detail.)

All required component units/funds/agencies of the local unit are included in the financial statements and/or disclosed in the
reporting entity notes to the financial statements as necessary.

There are no accumulated deficits in one or more of this unit's unreserved fund balances/unrestricted net assets
(P.A. 275 of 1980) or the local unit has not exceeded its budget for expenditures.

The local unit is in compliance with the Uniform Chart of Accounts issued by the Department of Treasury.
The local unit has adopted a budget for all required funds.

A public hearing on the budget was held in accordance with State statute.

The local unit has not violated the Municipal Finance Act, an order issued under the Emergency Municipal Loan Act, or
other guidance as issued by the Local Audit and Finance Division.

The local unit has not been delinquent in distributing tax revenues that were collected for another taxing unit.
The local unit only holds deposits/investments that comply with statutory requirements.

The local unit has no illegal or unauthorized expenditures that came to our attention as defined in the Builetin for
Audits of Local Units of Government in Michigan, as revised (see Appendix H of Bulletin).

There are no indications of defalcation, fraud or embezzlement, which came to our attention during the course of our audit
that have not been previously communicated to the Local Audit and Finance Division (LAFD). If there is such activity that has
not been communicated, please submit a separate report under separate cover.

The local unit is free of repeated comments from previous years.
The audit opinion is UNQUALIFIED.

The local unit has complied with GASB 34 or GASB 34 as modified by MCGAA Statement #7 and other generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

The board or council approves all invoices prior to payment as required by charter or statute.
To our knowledge, bank reconciliations that were reviewed were performed timely.

If a local unit of government (authorities and commissions included) is operating within the boundaries of the audited entity and is not
included in this or any other audit report, nor do they obtain a stand-alone audit, please enclose the name(s), address(es), and a
description(s) of the authority and/or commission.
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I—‘l U NG‘E R;O R D&CO Certified Public Accountants

A Professional Corporation

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Trustees
Township of Grosse lle, Michigan

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007, which collectively comprise the
Township’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Township of Grosse ile, Michigan's management. Qur responsibility is to express opinions on
these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on
a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmentai activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan, as of
March 31, 2007 and the respective changes in financial position and where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 26, 2007 on
our consideration of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of our audit.

13305 Reeck Road, Southgate, Michigan 48195 (734) 246-9600 FAX (734) 246-8349
Members - American Institute of Certified Public Accountants - Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants



To the Board of Trustees
Township of Grosse lle, Michigan
Page 2

The management's discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 8 and 50
through 52 are not a required part of the basic financial statements, but are supplementary information required by
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America. We have applied certain limited procedures,
which consisted principally of inquires of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of -
the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Township of Grosse lle, Michigan's basic financial statements. The accompanying other supplemental information,
as identified in the table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the
basic financial statements. The other supplemental information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,

September 26, 2007
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Township of Grosse lle

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Our discussion and analysis of the Township of Grosse lle’s (the “Township”) financial
performance provides an overview of the Township’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended
March 31, 2007. Please read it in conjunction with the Township’s financial statements.

Financial Highl_ights

As discussed in further detail in this discussion and analysis, the following represents the most
significant financial highlights for the year ended March 31, 2007:

e The financial report for the year ended March 31, 2007 reflects complete implementation of
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 34, which significantly
changed the content and format of municipal financial reporting. Accordingly, these
statements present both entity-wide financial reporting for all governmental and business
activities in addition to reporting financial information at the fund level.

e State-shared revenue, our second largest revenue source, was reduced by the State of
Michigan by approximately $18,308 this year, which represents a 2.0 percent decrease from
the prior year.

o Property taxes are the Township’s single largest source of revenue. The Township’s taxable
value for fiscal year 2006/2007 was $640,589,637, which represents an increase of
$28,469,969, or 4.65 percent.

e The Township has historically been conservative and continuously monitors discretionary
spending; as a result, the fund balance of the General Fund increased by $32,913.

e On July 26, 2006, limited tax general obligation bonds were issued in the amount of
$3,000,000 for the construction of sewer mains located on Grosse lle Parkway, Woodside
and Sunnybrook and water mains located on East River from Ferry Road to Horsemill and on
Southpointe from Johnson to the bridge.

Using this Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net assets
(deficit) and the statement of activities provide information about the activities of the Township
as a whole and present a longer-term view of the Township’s finances. This longer-term view
uses the accrual basis of accounting so that it can measure the cost of providing services during
the current year, and whether the taxpayers have funded the full cost of providing government
services.

HUNGERFORDg,CO.




Township of Grosse lle

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The fund financial statements present a short-term view; they tell us how the taxpayers’
resources were spent during the year, as well as how much is available for future spending.
Fund financial statements also report the Township’s operations in more detail than the
gavernment-wide financial statements by providing information about the Township’s most
significant funds. The fiduciary fund statements provide financial information about activities for
which the Township acts solely as a trustee or agent for the benefit of those outside of the
government.

The Township as a Whole

The following table shows, in a condensed format, the net assets as of March 31, 2007 and 2006
(in thousands of dollars):

TABLE |
Governmental Activities _ Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Assets
Current assets $ 15900 $ 14647 $ 12,295 $ 14,751 $ 28,195 $ 29,398
Noncurrent assets 32,265 32,401 64,484 59,361 96,749 91,762
Total assets 48,165 47,048 76,779 74,112 124,944 121,160
Liabilities
Current liabilities 993 874 3,421 3,348 4,414 4,222
Long-term liabilities 4,497 4,997 43,528 42,615 '48.025 47,612
Total liabilities 5,490 5,871 46,949 45,963 5_2,439 51,834
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets -

Net of related debt 27,502 27,199 19,544 20,594 47,046 47,793
Restricted 10,966 9,894 6,552 6,084 17,518 15,978
Unrestricted 4,207 4,084 3,734 1,471 7,941 ‘ 5,555

Total net assets $ 42,675 $ 41,177 $ 29,830 $ 28,149 $ 72,505 $ 69,326

The Township of Grosse lle has combined net assets of $72.5 million. Business-type activities
comprise $29.8 million of the total net assets.
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Township of Grosse lle

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The following table shows the changes of the net assets during the years ended March 31, 2007
and 2006 (in thousands of dollars):

TABLE 2
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Net Assets - Beginning of year $ 41,177 $ 39860 $ 28149 $ 26407 $ 69,326 $ 66,267
Revenue
Program revenue:
Charges for services 1,280 1,258 5,209 5,478 6,489 6,736
Operating grants and contributions 215 - 86 - - 215 86
Capital grants and contributions - - 315 - 315 -
General revenue;
Property taxes 6,099 5918 2,246 2,149 8,345 8,067
State-shared revenue 898 9H - - 898 9l
Unrestricted investment earnings 726 504 409 215 1135 719
Transfers and other revenue (58) - 58 [C]))] - (51
To;al revenue 9,160 8,677 8,237 7791 | 7,397 lv6,468
Program Expenses
General government 2,704 2,561 - - 2,704 2,561
Public safety 3,998 3,718 - - 3998 3,718
Public works - - 4,642 4,309 4,642 4,309
Municipal Airport and Commerce Park - - 1,391 1,296 1,391 1,296
Recreation and culture 700 797 523 444 1,223 1.241
Interest on long-term debt 260 284 - - 260 284
Total program expenses 7,662 . 7.360 6,556 6,049 14218 _ 13,409
Change in Net Assets 1,498 1,317 1,681 1,742 3,179 3,059
Net Assets - End of year $ 42,675 $ 41,177 § 29,830 § 28,149 $ 72,505 $ 69,326
5
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Township of Grosse lle

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Gp\fernmental Activities

The Township’s total governmental revenues increased by approximately $525,444. The
increase, which represents less than 6.0 percent, was due primarily to a significant increase in
interest earned during the fiscal year of approximately $220,979 and the Township continuing to
recognize an increase in property taxes.

Expenses increased by about $4,700 during the year. The increase was due to the Township
closely monitoring its spending in all areas.

Business-type Activities

The Township’s business-type activities consist of the Department of Public Works, the
Municipal Airport and Commerce Park, and the Water’s Edge Country Club. The Department
of Public Works Fund provides water to residents from the Detroit Water System. The
Township provides sewage treatment through a Township-owned sewage treatment plant.
Refuse collection and recycling services are provided by an outside commercial entity.

The operating revenue of the Department of Public Works' fund decreased by 3.9 percent, even
though the Township imposed a 5 percent rate increase for water usage and a 5 percent rate
increase for sewer usage. This increase was passed to absorb the 6.1 percent increase from the
City of Detroit for the fiscal year and to pay for current and future capital improvement
infrastructure needs. The operating expenses increased by 3.8 percent, resulting in an overall
operating net income of $108,131. The increase in expenses was due primarily to water
purchased from the City of Detroit and increased personnel costs.

The Municipal Airport and Commerce Park Fund is used to account for the airport operations
and the Commerce Park complex. In March 2004, the Grosse lle Municipal Airport entered into
a management agreement with John Shade, director, Grosse lle Tennis Center to provide the
management of tennis programs. Revenues from membership fees shall be placed in a separate
account maintained by the Township and applied toward utility expenses and other expenses as
deemed necessary. The revenues from court and lesson fees shall be allocated on the following
percentage-of-gross basis: director 60 percent, airport 30 percent, and donors 10 percent.
Revenues and expenses for this activity have been reported in this fund in the amounts of
$74,094 and $27,359 respectively.

The operating revenue for this fund decreased by approximately 6.3 percent and the operating
expenses increased by approximately 7.7 percent. The decrease in revenue and increase in
expenses resulted primarily from the renegotiation of and a loss of a rent tenant which both
resulted in bad debt expense of approximately $170,592. Operating loss was $253,485 for the
fiscal year.

The Water’'s Edge Country Club Fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the golf
course, pool, and marina facilities. The facilities are open to the public on a membership and fee
basis. '
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Township of Grosse lle

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

The operating revenue for this fund decreased by approximately 9.7 percent, and the operating
expenses increased by approximately less than 21.5 percent. The decrease in revenue resulted
primarily fram the decline of usage of the golf facility and memberships. The increase in
operating expenses is due to spending efforts to maintain and promote the facility to encourage
usage. The two biggest factors affecting the golf course business are the weather and the
economy. Qperating loss was $46,425 for the fiscal year, The Township continues to monitor
this facility closely for viability

The Township’s Funds

Our analysis of the Township’s major funds begins on page |3, following the government-wide
financial statements. The fund financial statements provide detail information about the mest
significant funds, not the Township as a whole. The Township Board creates funds to help
manage money for specific purposes as well as to show accountability for certain activities, such
as special property tax millages. The Township’s major funds for 2007 include the General
Fund, the Road Improvement Fund, the 1999 SAD Debt Fund, and the 2004 SAD Debt Fund.

The General Fund pays for most of the Township’s governmental services. The most significant
are general administration and police operations, which incurred expenses of approximately
$2.0 and $2 8 million, respectwely, in the current year. The budget in the General Fund is
basically a “maintenance” budget, which means it increases modestly from year to year.

General Fund Bng_etary Highlights

Over the course of the year, the Township did not amend the budget. The adjustment was
made from fund balance to purchase equipment. The Township Board’s policy regarding the
budget is to avoid making adjustments during the year so that the budget can be used as a
financial guide to make financial decisions, and to analyze and maintain the validity of the budget
document. As a result, the actual revenues and expenses are usually within 10 percent of
budgeted amounts. Overall, the Township departments stayed below the original budget
amounts, resulting in total expenditures and transfers of $32,913 below budget, however, due to
reserve requirements for general fund’s operating purposes, the General Fund’s unreserved fund
balance increased from $783,665 a year ago to $918,128 at March 31, 2007.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

On July 26, 2006, limited tax general obligation bonds were issued in the amount of $3,000,000
for the construction of sewer mains located on Grosse lle Parkway, Woodside and Sunnybrook
and water mains located on East River from Ferry Road to Horsemill and on Southpointe from
Johnson to the bridge.

At the end of fiscal year 2007, the Township had approximately $96.7 million (net of
depreciation) invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, buildings, bike paths,
roads, equipment, and water and sewer lines.

HUNGERFORD&,CO.




Township of Grosse lle

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Major capital improvements for the fiscal year included the start of sanitary sewer replacements
at Ravet Woods subdivision and between Horsemill Road and Highland Drive and a sanitary
sewer extension at Meridian, the Department of Public Works water meter change-out project,
the completion of the Round Island threshold/easement project at the Grosse lle Municipal
Airport, and the continuation of the sanitary sewer rehabilitation project.

In 2006/2007 the Township purchased three additional parcels of Open Space property in the
amount of $62,834 one of which was vacant tax reverted property purchased from Wayne
County.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Due to the extreme economic conditions that every local community is currently facing, the
Township’s 2007-2008 budget was prepared with the following criteria. First, operating millage
revenues will be increased by 3 percent. This can be accomplished because of the strong
growth in our tax base. The statewide Tax Reform Act limits growth in taxable value on any
individual property to the lesser of inflation or 5 percent. Because of the impact of Proposal A,
however, the Township needs to continue to watch its budget very closely. Further, the
Township incorporated a state-shared revenue to remain constant, a |5 percent increase in all
employee health insurance premiums, and a 10 percent increase in liability insurance premiums.
By limiting other categories of discretionary spending and revisiting how certain services are
delivered, the Township was able to balance its budget for the 2007-2008 fiscal year.

As of April 1, 2007, water rates will increase by 5 percent and sewer rates will increase by
5 percent charged to Township residents. Due to large rate increases in previous years, the
Township Board felt that the Department of Public Works could absorb the 8.3 percent rate
increase imposed by the Detroit Water Board by only increasing rates slightly.

Contacting the Township’s Management

This financial report is intended to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors with
a general overview of the Township’s finances and to show the Township’s accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, we
welcome you to contact the finance department.
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Township of Grosse lle

Statement of Net Assets (Deficit)
March 31, 2007

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
Assets
Cash and investments (Note 3) $ 14377513 § 782,827 $ 15,160,340 $ 327,200
Restricted assets - Undrawn bond
proceeds (Note 8) - 2,614,315 2,614,315 -
Receivables - Net (Note 4) 1,015,064 - 1,015,064 -
Customer receivables - 1,169,681 1,169,681 -
Internal balances (Note 6) 347 586 (347,586) - -
Due from other goyernmental units 154,658 712,196 866,854 -
Due from primary government - - - 283,919
Inventories 4,865 55,305 60,170 -
Prepaid items and other assets ' 625 22,834 23,459 -
Restricted assets (Note 8) - 7,285,137 7,285,137 -
Capital assets - Net (Note 5) 32,265,017 64,483,980 96,748,997 -
Total assets 48,165,328 76,778,689 124,944,017 611,119
Liabilities
Accounts payable 320,356 1,123,291 1,443,647 2,282
Accrued and other liabilities 91,684 34814 126,498 500
Deferred revenue (Note 4) 1,515 62,826 64,34) -
Customer deposits - 91,941 91,94\ -
Compensated absences:
Due within one year 106,282 28,992 135,274 -
Due in more than one year 207,643 66,035 273,678 -
Long-term debt (Note 7):
Due within one year 472,557 2,079,263 2,551,820 69,812
Due in more than one year 4,290,000 43,461,941 47,751,941 703,455
Total liabilities 5,490,037 46,949,103 52,439,140 776,049
Net Assets (Deficit)
Invested in capital assets - Net of
related debt 27,502,460 19,544,057 47,046,517 -
Restricted:
Debt service 1,366,210 - 1,366,210 -
Other purposes (Note | ) 9,600,050 6,552,490 16,152,540 -
Unrestricted 4,206,57| 3,733,039 7,939,610 (164,930)

Total net assets (deficit) $ 42,675,291 $ 29,829,586

$ 72,504,877 $ (164,930)

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 9
Integral Part of this Statement.
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Township of Grosse lle

Functions/Programs
Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Cultural and recreation
Interest on debt

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Department of Public Works
Municipal Airport and Commerce Park
Water's Edge Country Club

Total business-type activities
Total primary government

Component units:
Brownfield Authority
Downtown Development Authority

Total component units

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement.

Program Revenues

Operating  Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and
Expenses Services Contributiqns Contributi_ons‘
$ 2,702,970 $ 885,136 $ 215387 $ -
3,998,383 219,290 - -
699,612 175,813 - -
260,276 _ - - -
7,661,241 1,280,239 215,387 -
4,643,166 3,696,241 - -
1,391,139 1,101,464 - 315,033
523,157 411,528 - -
6,557,462 5,209,233 - 315,033
$ i4,2l8,703 $ 6489472 $ 215387 $ 3'.‘5‘933
$ 8,003 $ - % - 8 -
85,002 : - -
$ 93,005 $ - $ - % .

General revenues:
Property taxes
State-shared revenues
Unrestricted investment earnings
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers
Change in Net Assets
Net Assets - Beginning of year

Net Assets - End of year

HUNGERFORDE,CO.




Statement of Activities
Year Ended March 31, 2907

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets
Primary Goverhmen;

Governmental  Business-type Component
Activi(ie_s Activities Total Units

$ (1,602,447) $ - $ (1,602,447) $ -

(3,779,093) - (3,779,093) -

(523,799) - (523,799) -

(260,276) - (260,276) -

(6,165,615) - (6,165,615) -

- (946,925) (946,925) -

- 25,358 25,358 -

- (111,629) (111,629 ; -

- (1,033,196) _ (1,033,196) _ -

(6,165,615)  (1,033,196)  (7,198,811) -

) . . (8,003)
- - - (85,002)
- - - (93,005)
6,098,915 2,246,438 8,345,353 306,353
898,118 - 898,118 -
725,608 408,890 1,134,498 10,238
(58,290) 58,290 - -
7,664,351 2,713,618 10377969 316,59
1,498,736 1,680,422 3,179,158 223,586
41,176,555 _ 28,149,164 _ 69325719 _  (388,516)

$ 42,675,291 $ 29,829,586 $ 72,504,877 $ (164,930)
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Township of Grosse lle

: ' Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet
March 31, 2007

Road Nonmajor Total
Improvement 1999 SAD 2004 SAD  Governmental ~Governmental
General Fund Fund Debt Fund  Debt Fund Funds Funds
Assets
Cash and investments $ 2821327 § 3935899 $ 1i6326 $ 258298 $ 7245663 $ 14377513
Receivables - Net 242,724 9,284 121,367 340,785 300,904 1,015,064
Due from other funds 486,531 - - - 20,937 507,468
Due from other governmental units 138,082 - - - 16,576 154,658
Inventories 4,865 - - - - 4,865
Prepaid items and other assets - - - - 625 625
Total assets $ 3,693,529 §$ 3,945,183 § 237,693 $ 599,083 $ 7,584,705 $ I§,069,I93
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 58,435 § 5903 § -8 - 3 256,018 $ 320,356
Accrued and other liabilities 43,580 - - - 48,104 91,684
Due to cher funds - - . - 159,882 159,882
Deferred revenue - - 121,367 338,061 91,086 550,514
Total liabilities 102,015 5,903 121,367 338,061 555,090 1,122,436
Fund Balances
Reserved for debt service - - 116,326 261,022 988,862 1,366,210
Designated, reported in General
Fund (Note | I) 2,673,386 - - - - 2,673,386
Unreserved - Undesignated, reported in:
General Fund 918,128 - - - - 918,128
Special Revenue Funds - 3,939,280 - - 5,704,223 9,643,503
Capital Projects Funds - - - - 336,530 336,530
Total fund balances 3,591,514 3,939,280 116,326 261,022 7,029,615 |4,937,7S7
Total liabilities and
fund balances $ 3,693,529 $ 3,945,183 $ 237,693 $ 599,083 $ 7,584,705 $ 16,060,193
Total fund balance for governmental funds $ 14,937,757

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activitles are not financial resources and are not reported

in the funds 32,265,017
Special assessment revenue not received within 60 days of year end is not reported as revenue '

in the funds 548,999
Long-term debt is not due and payable in the current period and is not reported in the funds (4,762,557
Accumulated sick and vacation pay is not due and payable in the current period and is not reported

in the funds (313,925)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 42,675,291

The Notes to Financial Statements are an 12

Integral Part of this Statement.
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Township of Grosse lle

Governmental Funds

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and
Changes in Fund Balances
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Road Nonmajor Total
Improvement 1999 SAD 2004 SAD  Governmental ~Governmental
General Fund Fund Debt Fund  Debt Fund Funds Funds
Revenue
Property taxes $ 3,097256 $ 243§ - 3 - $ 3,000,416 $ 6,0989I5
Special assessments - - 21,668 61,304 23,418 106,390
State sources 898,118 - - - - 898,118
Licenses and permits 411,488 - - - - 411,488
Charges for services 220 - - - 141,557 141,777
Ambulance fees - - - - 97,515 97,515
Rental income 22,167 - - - 121,380 143,547
Federal sources - - - - 215,387 2 15,387
Fines and forfeitures 121,775 - - - - 121,775
Interest income 234,722 215,014 13,155 26,851 235,866 725,608
Other 263,481 - - - 97,342 360,823
Total revenue 5,049,227 215,257 34,823 88,155 3,933,881 9,321,343
Expenditures
Current:
General government 1,992,273 278,324 - - 198,538 2,469,135
33rd District Court 86,287 - - - - 86,287
Public safety 2,750,510 - - - 1,330,443 4,080,953
Cultural and recreation - - - - 655,286 655,286
Capital outlay - - - - - -
Debt service - - 44,760 70,583 584,338 699,681
Total expenditures 4,829,070 278,324 44,760 70,583 2,768,605 7,991,342
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures 220,157 (63,067) (9.937) 17,572 1,165,276 1,330,001
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 60,621 - - - 199,575 260,196
Transfers out (247,865) - - - (70,621) (318,486)
Total other financing sources
(uses) (187.244) - - - 128,954 (58,290)
Net Change in Fund Balances 32,913 (63,067) (9.937) 17,572 1,294,230 1,271,711
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 3,558,601 4,002,347 126,263 243,450 5,735,385 13,666,046
Fund Balances - End of year $ 3,591,514 $ 3,939,280 $ 116,326 $ 261,022 $ 7,029,615 $ 14,937,757

The Notes to Financial Statements are an

Integral Part of this Statement.
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Township of Grosse lle

Governmental Funds

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activitics

Year Ended March 31, 2007

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 1,271,711

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures;
in the statement of activities, these costs are allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation:

Capital outlay 698,338
Loss on disposal of assets ‘ (18,373)
Depreciation expense (815,950)

Special assessment revenues are recorded in the statement of
activities when the assessment is set; they are not reported
in the funds until collected or collectible within 60 days of
year end (103,076)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the
governmental funds, but not in the statement of activities

(where it reduces long-term debt) 439,405
Increase in accumulated employee sick and vacation pay
is recorded when earned in the statement of activities 26,681
Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities $_|_-‘19_8_»'_7_§_6_
The Notes to Financial Statements are an 14

Integral Part of this Statement.
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Township of Grosse lle

e L

Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted assets - Undrawn proceeds
Customer receivables - Net
Due from other govenmental units
Due from other funds
Inventories
Prepaid costs and other assets

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets
Capital assets

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits
Current portion of compensated absences
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Provision for compensated absences -
Net of current portion

Long-term debt - Net of current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Investment in capital assets - Net of related
debt
Restricted (Note 11)
Unrestricted

Total net assets

The Notes to Financial Statements are an

Integral Part of this Statement.

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Assets

March 31, 2007

Enterprise Funds

Department of

Municipal Airport
and Commerce

Water's Edge

Public Works Park Country Club Total
$ 300 $ 673,924 § 108,603 $ 782,827
2,614,315 - - 2,614,315
1,109,306 58,375 2,000 1,169,681
712,196 - - 712,196
R - 9,956 9,956
33,082 21,283 940 55,305
21,507 1,298 29 22,834
4,490,706 754,880 121,528 5,367,114
7,271,747 13,390 - 7,285,137
53,355,734 9,825,798 1,302,448 64,483,980
60,627,48) 9,839,188 1,302,448 71,769,117
65,118,187 10,594,068 1,423,976 77,136,231
1,039,330 77,269 6,692 1,123,291
9,343 21,778 3,693 34,814
54,081 9,057 294,404 357,542
- - 62,826 62,826
25,521 63,920 2,500 91,941
11,200 9,936 7,856 28,992
2,014,263 25,000 40,000 2,079,263
3,153,738 206,960 417,971 3,778,669
35513 7,256 23,266 66,035
41,906,941 605,000 950,000 43,461,941
41,942,454 612,256 973,266 43,527,976
45,096,192 819,216 1,391,237 47,306,645
10,049,201 9,182,408 312,448 19,544,057
6,552,490 - - 6,552,490
3,420,304 592,444 (279,709) 3,733,039
$ 20,021,995 $ 9,774,852 $ 32,739 $ 29,829,586
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Township of Grosse lle

m

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Revenue, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Year Ended March 31, 2007

Enterprise Funds

Department of

Municipal Airport

and Commerce  Water's Edge

Public Works Park Country Club Total
Operating Revenue
Sale of water $ 1895878 $ - % - 8 1,895,878
Sewage disposal charges 1,254,584 - - 1,254,584
Refuse charges 545,779 - - 545,779
Airport related - 324,395 - 324,395
Commerce Park rent - 437,787 - 437,787
Fuel farm - 265,188 - 265,188
Tennis center - 74,094 - 74,094
Golf - - 271,034 271,034
Marina - - 109,669 109,669
Pool - - 30,825 30,825
Total operating revenue 3,696,241 1,101,464 411,528 5,209,233
Operating Expenses
Cost of water produced/purchased 1,481,618 - - 1,481,618
Cost of sewage treatment 1,065,482 - - 1,065,482
Cost of refuse disposal 646,862 - - 646,862
Airport related - 473,462 - 473,462
Commerce Park rent - 234,866 - 234,866
Fuel farm - 238,295 - 238,295
Tennis center - 27,359 - 27,359
Golf - - 270,873 270,873
Marina . - 46,346 46,346
Pool - - 70,997 70,997
Depreciation 394,148 380,967 69,737 844,852
Total operating expenses 3,588,110 1,354,949 457,953 5,401,012
Operating Income (Loss) 108,131 (253,485) (46,425) (191,779)
Nonoperating Revenue (Expenses)
Property taxes 2,246,438 - - 2,246,438
Investment income 376,445 28,374 4,071 408,890
Interest expense (1,055,056) (36,190 (65,204) (1,156,450)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) 1,567,827 (7.816) (61,133) 1,498,878
Income (Loss) - Before capital
contributions 1,675,958 (261,301) (107,558) 1,307,099
Capital Contributions - 315,033 - 315,033
Operating Transfers In - - 58,290 58,290
Change in Net Assets 1,675,958 53,732 (49,268) 1,680,422
Net Assets - Beginning of year 18,346,037 9,721,120 82,007 28,149,164
Net Assets - End of year $ 20,021,995 $ 9,774,852 $ 32,739 $ 29,829,586
The Notes to Financial Statements are an 16

Integral Part of this Statement.
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Township of Grosse lle

’ Proprietary Funds

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Enterprise Funds

Municipal Airport
Department of and Commerce  Water's Edge

Public Works Park County Club Total
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers $ 6816107 §$ 1,159,694 ¢ 483434 $ 8,459,235
Payments to suppliers (3,243,281) (769,560) (296,028) (4,308,869)
Payments to employees (708,376) (240,226) (181,090) (1,129,692)
Internal activity - Payments from (to) other funds (14,020) 26,647 (8,015) 4612
Other receipts 376,445 28,374 4,071 408,890
Net cash provided by operating activities 3,226,875 204,929 2,372 3,434,176
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issuance of debt 3,000,000 - - 3,000,000
Purchase of capital assets (2,077,033) (32,411) - (2,109,444)
Proceeds from property tax levy 2,246,438 - 2,246,438
Qperating transfers in - - 58,290 58,290
Principal paid on capital debt (1,924,263) (25,000) (40,000) (1,989,263)
interest paid on capital debt (1,055,056) (36,190) (65,204) (1,156,450)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities 190,086 (93,601) (46,914 49,571
Cash Flows from Investing Activities - Interest received
on investments 376,445 28,374 4,071 408,890
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents ' 3,793,406 139,702 (40,471 3,892,637
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 3,478,641 547,612 149,074 4,175,327
Cash and Cash Equivaients - End of year $ 7,272,047 § 687,314 $ 108,603 § _ 8,067,964
Balance Sheet Classification of Cash and Cash
Equivalents
Cash and investments $ 300 $ 673,924 $§ 108,603 $ 782,827
Restricted investments (Note 8) 7,271,747 13,390 - 7,285,137
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 7,272,047 $ 687,314 $ 108,603 $ 8,067,964
The Notes to Financial Statements are an 17

Integral Part of this Statement.
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Township of Grosse lle

T S S —

Recanciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash from Operating Activities
Operating income (loss) '
Adjustmeﬁts to reconcile operating income (loss)
to et cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Due from other governmental units
Prepaid expense
Inventories
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Deferred revenue
Compensated absences
Other liabilities
Interfund activity

Net cash provided by operating activities

Department of

Proprietary Funds
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

Year Ended March 31, 2007

Municipal Airport

and Commerce

Water's Edge

Public Works Park Country Club Total.
108,131 $ (253,485) $  (46,425) (191,779)
394,148 380,967 69,737 844,852
(17.327) 71,931 (2,000) 52,604

2,775,489 - 2,775,489
(18,901) (1,298) (29) (20,228)

- (6,204) - (6,204)

3,234 15,541 (1,738) 17,037

(7,968) (8,258) (4,230) (20.456)

- (1,972) (1,972)

4,089 (9,187) (2,956) (8,054)

- (11,725) - (11,725)

(14,020 26,647 (8,015) 4,612

$ 3,226,875 $ 204,929 $ 2,372 § 3,434,176

Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing Activities - During the year ended March 31, 2007, the Municipal Airport and Commerce Park fund
received $301,798 of matching funds from the state and federal governments for their portion of the Round Island threshold/easement project and for the
airport layout master plan. The Municipal Airport and Commerce Park fund also received $13, 014 from Donors for renovations to the Tennis Center.

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement.
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Township 6f Grosse lle

Assets - Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities
Due to component unit

Due ta other governmental units
Accrued and other liabilities

Total liabilities

The Notes to Financial Statements are an

Integral Part of this Statement.

Fiduciary Funds
Statement of Assets and Liabilities
March 31, 2007

Agency Funds

General " Tax Coliection

Total

$ 1,309,435

$ 757,100 $ 552,335

$ - $ 283,919 $ 283,919
- 199,579 199,579

757,100 68,837 825,937

$ 757,100 $ 552,335 $ 1,309435
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Township of Grosse lle

Assets
Cash and investments
Due from primary government

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Long-term debt (Note 7):
Due within one year
Due in more than one year

Total liabilities

Net Assets (Deficit) - Unrestricted

The Notes to Financial Statements are an
Integral Part of this Statement.

Component Units
Statement of Net Assets (Deficit)
March 31, 2007

Downtown
Brownfield Development
Authority Authority Totals
$ 187,952 $ 139,248 327,200
163,319 120,600 283,919
351,271 259,848 611,119
- 2,282 2,282
- 500 500
38,943 30,000 69,812
259,324 445,000 703,455
298,267 477,782 776,049
$ 53004 $
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Township of Grosse lle

Program Revenues

Operating
Charges for Grants/
Expenses Services Contributions
Brownfield Authority - Community
and economic development $ 8,003 $ - $ -
Downtown Development Authority -
Community and economic development 85,002 - -
Total governmental activities $ 93,005 $ - 3 -

General Revenues
Property taxes

Interest
Total general revenues and transfers
Change in Net Deficit
Net Deficit - Beginning of year

Net Assets (Deficit) - End of year

21
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Component Units
Statement of Activities
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Net (Expense) Revenue
~and Changes in Net Assets

Downtown
Brownfield  Development
Authority Authority ~ Total

$ (8003) $ - $  (8,003)
- _ (85,002) (85,002)
_ @,.003) _ _(8_5,002) (93,005)
163,319 143,034 306,353
4,{844 ' 5,394 _ | 0,238
168,163 148,428 _ 3.'.6’591.
160,160 63,426 223,586
(107,156) A (281,360) _ (388,5 1 6)

$ 53004 $ (217,939) $ (164,930)
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Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of the Township of Grosse lle (the “Township”) conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as
applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of the significant
accounting policies used by the Township:

Reporting Entity

The Township operates as a General Law Township under the laws of the State of
Michigan. The Township is governed by an elected seven-member Board. The
accompanying financial statements present the Township and its component units,
entities for which the Township is considered to be financially accountable.
Although blended component units are legal separate entities, in substance, they are
part of the Township’s operations. Each discretely presented component unit is
reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial statements to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the Township (see discussion below for
description).

Blended Component Units

The Grosse lle Building Authority (the “Authority”) is composed of a three-member
board appointed by the Township’s Board of Trustees. Aithough it is a separate
legal entity from the Township, the Authority is reported as if it were a part of the
primary government because its sole purpose is to finance and construct the
Township’s public buildings.

The Grosse lle/City of Trenton Utilities Authority (the “Authority”) was created
under Michigan Statute Act 233 of Public Act 1955, as amended, to acquire,
construct, and finance water supply improvements. The Authority is composed of
three members, two from Grosse lle and one from the City of Trenton. Although
the Authority is presented under this section, there is no joint venture between the
two communities. Each community owns, operates, finances, and maintains its own
water/sewer system within its jurisdiction. This Authority is used as a funding
mechanism for water and sewer projects. There is no intention now or in the future
to sponsor a jointly owned venture. Although it is a separate legal entity from the
Township, the Authority is reported as if it were a part of the primary government
within the Department of Public Works Fund because its sole purpose is to finance
and construct water and sewer projects

23
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Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note | - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Downtown Development Authority (the “Authority”) was created under Act
No. 197 of the Michigan State statutes to correct and prevent deterioration in the
downtown district, encourage historical preservation, and to promote economic
development within the downtown district. The supervisor, subject to the approval
of the Township Board under the supervision and control of a Board consisting of
the Township supervisor and eight members, appoints the Authority. A tax
incremental financing plan was instituted to finance the activities of the Authority. In
addition, the Authority budget is subject to approval by the Township Board. It is
reported within the component unit column in the combined financial statements to
emphasize that it is legally separate from the Township.

The Brownfield Authority (the “Authority”) was created under Michigan Public Act
381 of 1997. lts purpose is to redevelop and reuse the Grosse lle Airport
Commerce Park through the capture of tax revenues generated within the
Brownfield District. The tax revenues are used to remediate environmental
problems (approved by the Township Board) and for land use and market studies
(approved by the State of Michigan Department of Environmental Quality). The
members consist of the Airport Commission appointed by the Township Board. A
tax incremental financing plan was instituted to finance the activities of the Authority.
In addition, the Authority’s budget is subject to approval by the Township Board. It
is reported within the component unit column in the combined financial statements
to emphasize that it is legally separate from the Township.

lointly Governed Qrganizations

Jointly governed organizations are discussed in Note |3.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets (deficit)
and the statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities
of the primary government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of
interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent
on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary
government is financially accountable.
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Township of Grosse lle

m |
Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2007

Note | - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of
a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are
those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include: (I) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or
segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as
general revenue. '

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary
funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the
government-wide financial statements. Major individual Governmental Funds and
major individual Enterprise Funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement
Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the
proprietary fund, fiduciary fund, and component unit financial statements. Revenue
is recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as
revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider
have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measurable and available. Revenue is
considered to be available if it is collected within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Township
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of
the current fiscal period. The following major revenue sources meet the availability
criterion: state-shared revenue, district court fines, and interest associated with the
current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be available only
when cash is received by the Township.
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Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note | - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual
accounting.  However, debt service expenditures, expenditures relating to
compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment
is due.

The Township reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government, except those required
to be accounted for in another fund.

Road Improvement Fund - The Road Improvement Fund is used to account for
funds from a tax millage for public improvements to nonresidential and commonly
used thoroughfares. It is used to pay certain contract indebtedness under contracts
to be entered into with the County of Wayne or contractors for the purpose of
providing various improvements and maintenance to roads within the Township and
the payment of any special road assessments for Township-owned lfand. The fund
was authorized by a vote of the residents approving a tax levy. The millage for this
fund expired in 2004.

2004 SAD Debt Fund - The 2004 SAD Debt Fund is used to account for principal
and interest debt activity related to debt used to construct a road special assessment
district. Debt service payments are made from yearly tax assessments and residual
monies from interest free pre-payments.

1999 SAD Debt Fund - The 2004 SAD Debt Fund is used to account for principal
and interest debt activity related to debt used to construct a road special assessment
district. Debt service payments are made from yearly tax assessments and residual
monies from interest free pre-payments.

The Township reports the following major proprietary funds:

Department of Public Works Fund - The Department of Public Works Fund
accounts for the activities of the water distribution system, sewage collection
system, and refuse collection. The fund’s primary revenues are generated through
user charges from those requesting water and sewer services.

Municipal Airport and Commerce Park Fund - The Municipal Airport and
Commerce Park Fund is used to account for the airport operations and the
Commerce Park complex. Financing is provided by user-charges for the airport and
by rental income in Commerce Park. The airport was a naval aviation operation,
transferred to the Township, and has some land use restrictions imposed by the
FAA.
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Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Water’s Edge Country Club Fund - The Water's Edge Country Club Fund
accounts for the operation and maintenance of the golf course, pool, and marina
facilities. The facilities are open to the public on a membership and fee basis.

Additionally, the Township reports the following fund types:

Agency Funds - Agency Funds account for assets held by the Township in a trustee
capacity. Agency Funds are custodial in nature (assets equal liabilities) and do not
involve the measurement of results of operations.

Capital Projects Funds - Capital Projects Funds are used to account for the
construction of major capital facilities and Township infrastructure other than those
financed by proprietary and trust funds.

Debt Service Funds - Debt Service Funds are used to account for the
accumulation of resources and payment of general obligation bond principal and
interest from special assessment levies when the government is obligated in some
manner for the payment.

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific
revenues that are legally restricted to expenditure for particular purposes or
designated by management to be accounted for in another fund. These funds are
classified as Special Revenue Funds due to the limited usage of their assets.

Private sector standards of accounting issued prior to December [, 1989 are
generally followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with the standards of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The Township has elected not to
follow private sector standards issued after November 30, 1989 for its business-type
activities.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenue and expenses generally result from providing services in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenue of the proprietary funds relates to charges to customers for sales
and services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue
and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenue and
expenses.
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Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note | - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Prope»r:*ty Tax Reverpue

Property taxes are levied on each December | on the taxable valuation of property
as of the preceding December 31. Taxes are considered delinquent on March | of
the following year, at which time penalties and interest are assessed.

The Township’s 2006 tax is levied and collectible on December [, 2005 and is
recognized as revenue in the year ended March 31, 2007, when the proceeds of the
levy are budgeted and available for the financing of operations.

The 2006 taxable valuation of the Township totaled $640.6 million (a portion of
which is abated and a portion of which is captured by the Brownfield Authority and
Downtown Development Authority), on which taxes levied consisted of 3.1812 mills
for operating purposes, |.7168 mills for police operations, 1.9789 mills for fire
operations and equipment purchases, .9991 mills for open space purchases, .4995
mills for recreation operations, .0999 mills for bike path maintenance, .1000 mills for
library use, .3213 mills for drainage improvements, .3800 mills for public safety
building debt, and 3.85 mills for sewer-related debt. This resulted in $2.01} million
for operating, $1.09 million for police operations, $1.255 million for fire operations
and equipment purchases, $631,000 for open space purchases, $315,000 for
recreation operations, $63,000 for bike path maintenance, $63,240 for library use,
$203,000 for drainage improvements, $244,000 for public safety building debt, and
$2.47 million for sewer-related debt. These amounts are recognized in the
respective General Funds, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Funds, and
Enterprise Funds financial statements as tax revenue.

Assets, Liabjlit_ie_s, and N_eg Assets or Equity

Bank Deposits and Investments - Cash and cash equivalents include cash on
hand, demand deposits, and short-term investments with a maturity of three months
or less when acquired. Investments are stated at fair value. To the extent that cash
from various funds has been pooled, pooled investment income is generally allocated
to each fund using a weighted average method. The statement of cash flows
includes both restricted and unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.

Receivables and Payables - In general, outstanding balances between funds are
reported as “due to/from other funds”. Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances”. All trade and property
tax receivables are shown as net of allowance for uncollectible amounts.
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Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note | - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Noncurrent receivables such as special assessments are recorded at full value, and
deferred revenue is recorded for the portion not available for use to finance
operations as of year end. Interest income on special assessments receivable is not
accrued until its due date.

Inventories and Prepaid Items - Inventories are valued at cost, on a first-in, first-
out basis. Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when
consumed rather than when purchased. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs
applicable to future fiscal years and are recorded as prepaid items in both
government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Assets - Restricted assets of the Department of Public Works Fund
consist of cash, municipal pooled investments, and highly liquid assets restricted for
replacement of the water and sewer distribution and coliection systems and sewer
plant capital replacement. Unspent bond proceeds of the Enterprise Funds are
required to be set aside for construction. These amounts have also been classified
as restricted assets.

Capital Assets - Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and
infrastructure assets, are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type
activities column in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are
defined by the Township as assets with an initial individual cost of more than $1,000
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated
capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

Buildings, equipment, and vehicles are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the following useful lives:

Roads and sidewalks 50 years
Bike paths 20 years
Drains 100 years
Water and sewer distribution systems 20 to 100 years
Water and sewer treatment facilities 40 to 50 years
Buildings and building improvements 20 to 50 years
Vehicies 5 to 30 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 to 10 years
Equipment and machines 7 to 20 years
Signs 20 years
29
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Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note | - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Compensated Absences (Vacation and Sick Leave) - It is the Township’s policy
to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused sick and vacation pay
benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability is reported in governmental funds
where appropriate except in the General Fund, where it is only reported for
employee terminations as of year end.

Long-term Obligations - In the government-wide financial statements and the
proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net assets.
Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. In
the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums
and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs during the current period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on
debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts are reported
as other financing uses. Issuance costs are reported as debt service expenditures.

Fund Equity - In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report
reservations of fund balance for amounts that are not available for appropriation or
are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific purpose. Designations
of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during
the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. '

Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary Information - The annual budget is prepared by the Township
Supervisor and adopted by the Township Board; subsequent amendments are
approved by the Township Board. Annual budgets are adopted on a basis consistent
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for the
General Fund and all Special Revenue Funds except that operating transfers and debt
proceeds have been included in the “revenue” and “expenditures” categories, rather
than as “other financing sources (uses)”.

30
HUNGERFORDE,CO.




Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note 2 » Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (Continued)

Annual budgets are adopted for all funds. The budget represents a complete
financial plan for all activities of the Township for the ensuing fiscal year. The budget
document presents information by fund, function, department, and line items. The
legal level of budgetary control adopted by the governing body is the department
level. Expenditures at this level in excess of amounts budgeted are a violation of
State law.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in all funds. Annual appropriations lapse at
fiscal year end; encumbrances are not included as expenditures. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders and contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations
of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. The amount
of encumbrances outstanding at March 31, 2007 is $0.

The budget process begins with a strategy meeting in December with the Township
supervisor, Township manager, and finance director to plan and prioritize goals and
objectives for the upcoming budget year.

Each January, department heads receive workpapers to prepare their individual line
item budgets. Upon completion, the department budgets are returned to the
finance director for compilation and review. A public meeting with the department
managers is held with the Township supervisor, Township manager, and finance
director to provide justification of their budgets.

A proposed, balanced budget is then developed and submitted to the Township
Board for review. A public hearing on the budget is held before its final adoption.
Upon review, and a subsequent public hearing, the Township Board adopts the
proposed budget by resolution prior to the commencement of the next fiscal year.

A comparison of actual results of operations to the General Fund and Major Special
Revenue Fund - Road Improvement budgets adopted by the Township Board is
included as required supplemental information.  The comparison includes
expenditure budget overruns. A comparison of actual results of operations,
including budget overruns to all the fund budgets as adopted by the Township
Board, is available at the finance department’s office for inspection.
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" Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Mote 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability (Continued)

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations in Budgeted Funds - During the
year, the Township incurred expenditures in governmental funds that were in excess
of the amounts budgeted, as follows:

Budget Actual Variance
General Fund

Board of Review $ 2,200 $ 2,240 $ (40)
Township Treasurer 147,192 150,505 (3,313)
Township Grounds 211,88l 234,149 (22,268)
Professional Services 90,500 412,462 (321,962)
Township Grounds and

Maintenance 128,115 129,692 (1,577)
33rd District Court 85,747 86,287 (540)
Public Safety - Police 2,700,059 2,733,162 (33,103)

The unfavorable expenditure variances in the General Fund were caused by
unanticipated expenditures that became necessary during the year.

Fund Deficits - The Township has accumulated fund deficits in the following
individual funds:

As a result of GASB 34 requirements, the deficit in the Downtown Development
Authority of $217,934 will be eliminated in future years as property tax collections
are received.

The deficit in the Water’'s Edge Country Club of $279,709 will be effected by
continued memberships, usage of the facility, and the reduction of expenditures.
The Township will continue to monitor operations closely.
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Note 2 - Stewardship, Compliance, and Ac_g:ountability (Continued)

Construction Code Fees - The Township oversees building construction, in
accordance with the State’s Construction Code Act, including inspection of building
construction and renovation to ensure compliance with the building codes. The
Township charges fees for these services. The law requires that collection of these
fees be used only for construction code costs, including an allocation of estimated
overhead costs. A summary of the current year activity and the cumulative surplus
or shortfall generated since January |, 2000 is as follows:

Cumulative shortfall at April |, 2006 $ (6,748
Current year building permit revenue 255,991
Related expenses:
Direct costs (218,854)
Administrative indirect costs (5,270)
Cumulative surplus at March 31, 2007 $ 25119

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments

Michigan Compiled Laws Section 129.91 (Public Act 20 of 1943, as amended)
authorizes local governmental units to make deposits and invest in the accounts of
federally insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations that have
offices in Michigan. The local unit is allowed to invest in bonds, securities, and other
direct obligations of the United States or any agency or instrumentality of the United
States; repurchase agreements; bankers’ acceptances of United States banks;
commercial paper rated within the two highest classifications, which matures not
more than 270 days after the date of purchase; obligations of the State of Michigan
or its political subdivisions, which are rated as investment grade; and mutual funds
composed of investment vehicles that are legal for direct investment by local units of
government in Michigan. The Township has designated seven banks for the deposit
of its funds. The investment policy adopted by the Board in accordance with Public
Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investment in bonds and securities of the United
States government, bank investment pool, and bank accounts and CDs, but not the
remainder of State statutory authority as listed above.
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Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note 3 - Deposits and Investments (Continued)
Custodial Credit Risk of Bank Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s
deposits may not be returned to it. The government does not have a deposit policy
for custodial credit risk. The bank balance of the Township’s deposits is $2,160,967,
of which $400,000 is covered by federal depository insurance and $1,760,967 is
uninsured and uncollateralized. The Township believes that due to the dollar
amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it is impractical to insure
all deposits. As a result, the Township evaluates each financial institution with which
it deposits Township funds and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only
those institutions with an acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories.

The component units’ deposits had a bank balance of $328,575, of which $100,000
was covered by federal depository insurance.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of investments will decrease as aresult of a
rise in interest rates. The Township's investment policy does not restrict investment
maturities, other than commercial paper which can only be purchased with a 270-
day maturity. At year end, the Township only had no investment subjected to
interest rate risk.

Credit Risk

State law limits investments in commercial paper to the top two ratings issued by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. The Township has no
investment that would further limit its investment choices. As of the end of the fiscal
year, the credit quality ratings of the debt securities (other than the U.S.
government) are as follows:

Investment Type Fair Value Rating __Rating Organization
Money Market Funds $ 265,923 Not Rated
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Notes to Financial Statements

March 31, 2007

Receivables as of year-end for the Township’s individual major funds and the
nonmajor funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible

agcounts, are as follows:

Road Nonmajor
General Improvement 2004 SAD and Qther  Total Primary
Fund Fund Debt Fund  Debt Fund Funds fGovernmenlt
Receivables:

Taxes $ 191,448 § 1,207 § $ 2,724 $ 189,292 § 384,671
Special assessments - - 338,061 89,571 548,999
Accounts 51,276 - - 6,038 57,314
Interest and other _ - , 8,077 - 16,003 24,089

Net receivables

$ 242724 § 9,284

$ 121367 $ 340,785 $§ 300,904 $ 1,015,064

At year end, all receivables recorded in the Township’s component units related to

taxes receivable,

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for
revenue that is not considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current
period. Governmental funds also defer revenue recognition in connection with
resources that have been received but not yet earned. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue are as follows:

Special assessments
Other

Total

_ _Unavai_lable Uneanjned

$ 548999 $ -
- 1515

$ 548999 $ 1,515

The Waters Edge Country Club bills the upcoming summer season dockage fees in

January of the applicable year.
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March 31, 2007

Note 5 - Capital Assets

Capital asset activity of the Township’s governmental and business-type activities
was as follows:

Balance Balance
April |, 2006 Additions Disposals Marchk 31, 2007
Governmental Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Open space land $ 10118914 $ 62,833 $ - $ 10,181,747
Other land 1,176,208 _ - - 1,176,208
Subtotal 11,295,122 62,833 - 11,357,955
Capital assets being depreciated:
Infrastructure 16,232,410 150,002 - 16,382,412
Buildings and improvements 7,767,752 106,574 - 7,874,326
Public safety vehicles 2,317,316 204,216 182,727 2,338,805
Furniture, fixtures, and other vehicles 3,445,146 174,713 7795 3612064
S_ub_total 29,762,624 §35,505 190,522 30,207,607
Accumulated depreciation:
Infrastructure 4,745,945 281,193 - 5,027,138
Buildings and improvements 1,165,920 161,109 - 1,327,029
Public safety vehicles 813,845 139,988 165,759 788,074
Furniture, fixtures, and other vehicles _1931,034 233,660 6,390 2,158,304
Subtotal 8,656,744 8_| 5,950 ‘ ‘I 72,149 ' 9,300,545
Net capital assets being depreciated 21,105,880 (180,445) v IB_,_373 20,907,062
Net capital assets $ 32401002 $ (117612) $ 18373 $ 32,265,017
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Note 5 - Capital Assets (Continued)

Balance Balance
April 1, 2006 Additions Disposals ~ March 31, 2007

Business-type Activities
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $ 5652599 $ - % - % 5652599
Construction in progress 36,158,634 5,041,272 3,156,863 38,043,043
Subtota}l 41,811,233 5,041,272 3,156,863 43,695,642
Capital assets being depreciated:
Water and sewer distribution system 13,377,832 3,759,670 - 17,137,502
Buildings and building improvements 14,969,022 323,060 - 15,292,082
Furniture, machinery, and equipment 704,629 - . - 704,629
Vehicles 254,510 _ - A - 254,510
Sub:total 29,305,993 4,082,730 - 33,388,723
Accumulated depreciation:
Water and sewer distribution system 2,996,469 196,585 - 3,193,054
Buildings and building improvements 7,857,283 471,794 - 8,329,077
Furniture, machinery, and equipment 708,489 43,184 - 751,673
Vehicles 193,292 133,289 - 326,581
Subtotal 11,755,533 844,852 - 12,600,385
Net capital assets being depreciated 17,550,460 3237878 _ - 20,788,338
Net capital assets $ 59,361,693 $ 8,279,150 $ 3,156,863 $ 64,483,980

Depreciation expense was charged to programs of the primary government as
follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 472,808
Public safety 288,368
Cultural and recreation 54,774

Total governmental activities $ 815950

Business-type activities:

Department of Public Works $ 394,148
Municipal Airport and Commerce Park 380,967
Water's Edge Country Club 69,737
Total business-type activities $ 844,852
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Mote 5 - Capital Assets (Continued)

Construction Commitments - The Township has active construction projects at

year-end. At year-end, the Township’s commitments with contractors are as
follows:

~ Remaining

Spent to Date  Commitment

$Sanitary Sewer Separation Project
Phase |l - Retention Basin Pump Station

and Interceptor $ 11,313,460 $ 705,032
Phase Il - North - South Relief Interceptor 12,426,763 1,974,747
Sanitary Sewer Replacement - Ravet Woods 876,837 276,739
Water Main Replacement - Ferry Road 625,240 109,918

Total $ 25242300 $ 3,066,436
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Notes to Financial Statements

Note 6 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers

The composition of interfund balances is as follows:

March 31, 2007

Receivable Fund Payable Fund __Amount
Due to/from Qther Funds
General Fund Nonmajor governmental funds $ 128,989
Department of Public Works 54,081
Municipal Airport and Commerce Park 9,057
Water's Edge Country Club 294,404
Total General Fund 486,531
Water's Edge Country Club Nonmajor governmental funds 9,956
Nonmajor governmental funds Nonmajor governmental funds 20,937
Tora s si7an
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
Component Units - Due from Primary Government
Component unit - Downtown
Development Authority Agency Fund - Tax collection fund $ 120,600
Component unit - Brownfield
Authority Agency Fund - Tax collection fund 163,319
Tota s 283919

These balances result from the time lag between the dates that goods and services
are provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, transactions are recorded in the
accounting system, and payments between funds are made.

Interfund transfers reported in the fund financial statements are comprised of the

following:

__Fund Providing Resources Fund Receiving Resources Amount
General Fund Nonmajor governmental funds $ 189,575
General Fund Water's Edge Country Club 58,290
Nonmajor governmental funds Nonmajor governmental funds 10,000
Nonmajor governmentat funds General Fund 60,621

Total $ 318,486
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March 31, 2007

Note 6 - Interfund Receivables, Payables, and Transfers (Continued)

The transfers to and from the General Fund to the nonmajor governmental funds
represent the use of unrestricted resources to finance those programs, in
accordance with budgetary authorizations; the transfer from the Municipal Airport
to the nonmajor gevernmental funds represents a transfer of monies in excess of
allowable grant expenditures.

Note 7 - Long-term Debt

The Township issues bonds to provide for the acquisition and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full
faith and credit of the Township. State and county contractual agreements and
installment purchase agreements are also general obligations of the government.
Special assessment bonds provide for capital improvements that benefit specific
properties, and will be repaid from amounts levied against those properties that
benefited from the construction. In the event that a deficiency exists because of
unpaid or delinquent special assessments at the time a debt service payment is due,
the Township is obligated to provide resources to cover the deficiency until other
resources (such as tax sale proceeds or a re-assessment of the district) are received.

Long-term obligation activity can be summarized as follows:

Interest Principal
Number Rate Maturity Beginning Ending Due Within
of Issues Ranges Ranges Balance Adjustments Additions { Reductions) Balance One Year
Governmental Activities
General obligation bonds:
Sanitary drain bonds I 3.15%-7.50% $131,392- § 566,962 $ -8 - 3 (134,405) $ 432,557 $ 172,557
Amount of issue: $5,285,000 $288,340
Marturing through 2009
Public safery bullding bonds | 4.15%-9.25% $70,000- - - -
Amount of issue: $2,555,000 $175,000
Maturing through 2015
Public safety building bonds 1 2.0%-4.0% $125,000- 1,335,000 - - (145,000) 1,190,000 140,000
Amount of issue: $1,585,000 $170,000
Maturing through 2015
Grosse lle Building Authority bonds | 5.125%-8.0% $25,000- 2,175,000 - - (50,000) 2,125,000 50,000
Amount of issue; $2,400,000 $200,000
Maturing through 2025
Special assessment bonds 5 3.5%-6.1% $10,000- 1,125,000 - - (110,000 1,015,000 110,000
Amount of issue: $3,695.000 $105,000
Maturing through 2019
Total governmental activities $_ 520192 % - 3 - 3 (439.405) $ 4762557 $ 472557
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Note 7 - Long-term Debt (Continued)

Business-type Activities
General obligation bonds:

Tax sewer system improvement bonds 3 2.125%-2.5% $155000- § 36594279 § -8 - § (1,630000) § 34964279 $ 1,665,000
Amount of issue: $40.000,000 $1,235,000
Maturing through 2025
G.i./Trenton U(i‘liry Auchority 5 3.25%-7.0% $15,000- 5,501,188 - 3,000,000 (249,263) 8,251,925 299,263
Amount of issue: $9,320,150 $201.075
Maturing through 2025
Grosse lle Building Authority bonds 1 5.2%-7.0% $20,000- 750,000 - - (45,000 705,000 50,000
Amount of issue: $950,000 $80,000
Maturing through 2018
Grosse lle Building Authority bonds I 7.65%-10.0% $5,000- 615,000 - - (10,000) 605,000 10,000
Amount of issue: $650,000 $50,000
Maturing through 2025
Capital Improvement bonds I 3.5%-4.7% $25,000- 415,000 - - (30,000) 385,000 30,000
Amount of issue: $515,000 $45,000
Ma(uringvthrough 2017
Capital Improvement bonds | 4.5%-6.3% $25,000- 655,000 - - (25,000) 630,000 25,000
Amount of issue: $680,000 $80,000
Maturing chrough 2019
Total business-type activities $ 44,530,467 $ - $ 3000000 $ (1,989,263) $ 45541204 § 2,079,263
Component Units
Brownfield revitalization revolving loan ! 2.25% $40,708- $ 337210 $ -8 -8 (38,943) § 298,267 § 39.812
Amounc of issue: $421,825 $46,524 .
Maturing through 2014
Downtown Development Authority I 4.1%-5.9% $5.000- 500,000 - - (25,000 475,000 30,000
Amount of issue: $620000 $65,000
Maturing through 2019
Total component units $ 837,210 § -8 - 8 (63,943) $ 773,267 § 69,812

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the above bonds and note
obligations are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Component Units
Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total Principal " Interest Total

2008 $ 472,587 $ 201,387 §$ 673,944 $ 2,079,263 $ 873554 §$ 2,952,817 $ 69812 $§ 29209 % 99,021
2009 555,000 189,133 744,133 2,134,263 815,569 2,949,832 70,708 27,023 97,731
2010 315,000 175,302 490,302 2,217,988 755,628 2,973,616 71,624 24,788 96,412
201} 315,000 160,541 475,541 2,327,988 692,978 3,020,966 82,560 22,501 105,061
2012 335,000 146,635 481,635 2,407,988 625,625 3,033,613 83518 19,704 103,222
2013-2017 1,350,000 518,104 1,868,104 13,562,290 1,997,734 15,560,024 330,045 56,178 386,223
2018-2022 845,000 262,743 1,107,743 13,846,424 (22,053) 13,824,371 65,000 3,185 68,185

2023-2027 575,000 45,484 620,484 6,965,000 (767,295) 6,197,705 - = -
Total $ 4762557 $ 1699329 $ 6,461,886 $ 45541204 $ 4,971,740 $ 50,512,944 $ 773267 $ 182,588 $ 955855

Advance Refundings In prior years, the Township defeased certain bonds by
placing the proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future
debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the trust accounts’ assets and
liabilities for the defeased bonds are not included in the general purpose financial
statements. At March 31, 2007, $1,175,000 of bonds outstanding are considered
defeased.
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Note 8 - Restricted Assets

The balances of the restricted asset accounts are as follows:

Municipal
Department Airport and Total
of Public =~ Commerce Business-type
Works Park Activities
Unspent bond proceeds and related
interest $2614315 $ 1339 $ 2,627,705
Due from other governmental units (1,895,058) (1,895,058)
Sewer plant improvements 3,221,111 - 3,221,111
Water and sewer distributive and
collective systems 3,331,379 - 3,331,379
Total restricted assets $7271,747 $ 13,390 $ 7,285,137

Restricted Assets - Undrawn bond proceeds reported in the Township’s
Department of Public Works represent funds available for future draws on the
Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project Bonds. Debt has been recorded by the
Township for 100 percent of the amount of funds available under this bond issue.

Note 9 - Risk Management

The Township is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, torts,
errors and omissions, and employee injuries (workers’ compensation), as well as
medical benefits provided to employees. The Township has purchased commercial
insurance for medical claims as of March 1997; however, the Township still
maintains a self-insurance plan for dental claims only. The Township participates in
the Michigan Municipal League risk pool for claims relating to workers’
compensation and the Michigan Township Participating Plan for property loss, torts,
and errors and omissions. Settled claims relating to the commercial insurance have
not exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

The Michigan Township Participating Plan operates as an insurance purchasing pool
for local units of government in Michigan. The plan purchases commercial insurance
on behalf of its members at a lower cost than would be available on an individual
basis.
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Note 9 - Risk Management (Continued)

The Michigan Municipal League risk pool program operates as a claims servicing
pool for amounts up to member retention limits and operates as a common risk-
sharing management program for local units of government in Michigan. Member
premiums are used to purchase excess insurance coverage and to pay member
claims in excess of deductible amounts.

Note 10 -~ Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description - The Township participates in the Michigan Municipal
Employees’ Retirement System (the “System”), an agent multiple-employer defined
benefit pension plan that covers all employees of the Township. The System
provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their
beneficiaries. The System issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That
report may be obtained by writing to the System at | 134 Municipal Way, Lansing,
Ml 48917. '

Trend information is as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended March 3|

2005 2006 2007
Annual pension costs (APC) $ 601,729 $ 571,872 $ 598,962
Percentage of APC contributed 100% 100% 100%
Net pension obligation $ - $ - $ -

Actuarial Valuation as of December 3|
2004 2005 2006

Actuarial value of assets $ 11,774520 $ 12,782,299 $ 13,949,966
Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) $ 15566691 $ 17,891,109 $ 19,325,668
Unfunded AAL (UAAL) $ 3,792,171 $ 5108810 $ 5375702
Funded ratio 75.6% 71.4% 72.2%
Covered payroll $ 3,123219 $ 3,051,886 $ 3,130,811
UAAL asa p'e_rcentage of cavered

payroli - 121% 167% 172%
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Note 10 - Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Continued)

At March 31, 2007, members consisted of the folIoWin_g:

Active Retired
Employees  Employees*

Police 17 0
Dispatch 6 3
Fire 2 [
Union 19 I
Administration 13 17

Total 57 42

*Retired employees include beneficiaries currently receiving benefits and
terminated employees entitled to benefits, but not yet receiving them.

Funding Policy - The obligation to contribute to and maintain the system for
these employees was established by negotiation with the Township’s competitive
bargammg units and requires a contribution from the employees of 3.25 percent of
gross wages for public safety employees.

Annual Pension Cost - For the year ended March 31, 2007, the Township’s
annual pension cost of $598,962 for the plan was equal to the Township's required
contribution. The annual required contribution was determined as part of an
actuarial valuation at December 31, 2006, using the entry age actuarial cost
method. Significant actuarial assumptions used include: (a) an 8 percent investment
rate of return, (b) projected salary increases of 4.5 per year, and (c) 2 percent per
year cost of living adjustments. Both (a) and (b) include an inflation component of
4.5 percent. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that
smooth the effects of short-term volatility over a four-year period. The unfunded
actuarial liability is being amortized as a level percentage of payroll on a closed
basis. The remaining amortization period is 30 years. Annually since 1997, the
Township has been budgeting and voluntarily contributing an extra $100,000 above
the recommended required contribution to work toward a 100 percent funding
level.
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Note 11 - Reserved and Designated Fund Balances

Net assets of governmental activities have been reserved for the following:

Restricted net assets:

Roads $ 3,939,280
Fire operating and equipment 1,909,817
Recreation 212,242
Library 272,532
Bicycle path 796,391
Drains 996,165
Open Space 1,149,604
Capital projects 324,019
Restricted net assets: $ 9,600,050

Fund balance of the General Fund has been designated for the following purposes:

Debt service $
Pending litigation costs
Subsequent year's expenditures

Total $

168,075
100,000

2,405,311

2,673,386
s

Net assets of the Department of Public Works have been reserved for the

following:

Sewer plant improvements $ 3,221,111

Water and sewer distributive and collective systems 3,331,379
Total restricted net assets $ 6,552,490

Note 12 - Contingent Liabilities

During the ordinary course of its operation, the Township is a party to various

claims, legal actions, and complaints.
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Note 12 - Contingent Liabilities (Continued)
Grosse lle Bridge Company

The Township adopted a Resolution and Statement of Necessity dated June 9,
2003, whereby indicating its intention to acquire, by its power of eminent domain,
the real and personal property belonging to the Grosse lle Bridge Company. The
Resolution of Necessity authorizes and directs the Township, via its legal counsel,
to institute legal proceedings against parties in interest of the subject property for
public purposes. In accordance with the provisions of MCL 212.55(1), the
Township submitted a good faith offer. for acquisition of the above property in the
amount of $4,293,000. This good faith offer was rejected on behalf of the Grosse
lle Bridge Company.

Following the unsuccessful attempt to condemn the bridge, the Grosse lle Bridge
Company has requested that the Court award it its fees and expenses incurred in
connection with the litigation to date. The expenses have been quantified as
approximately $100,000. A specific amount for the claimed attorney fees has not
been provided. However, it is believed that the amount claimed will exceed

$500,000.

The dispute is currently pending in Wayne County Circuit Court. Because the trial
court has indicated that it will rule in favor of the Grosse lle Bridge Company
despite the Township’s objections, it is likely that there will be an award by the trial
court against the Township in this matter. Because there are significant legal issues
associated with the entitlement of the Grosse lle Bridge Company to legal fees
under the applicable statute, the Township intends to appeal any such award and
vigorously contest any such liability. At this stage in the proceedings, the attorney
is unable to provide an estimate of the range of potential loss.

Sewer Separation Project

The Township, along with several other communities, was issued a “Notice of
Noncompliance” from the State of Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
(the “Department”) for alleged failure to comply with terms and conditions of a
permit for discharge of wastewater and sewage,
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Tawnship of Grosse lie

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note 12 -~ Contingent Liabilities (Continued)

The Township Board has agreed to the terms and conditions of an administrative
consent order issued by the Department dated April 26, 2001. Under terms of the
consent decree, the communities are required to undertake construction projects
to expand and upgrade the system. The Township has issued bonds of
$40,000,000 to pay for costs related to the system improvements. The
modifications to the system are substantially complete; however, contractual issues
with the contractors of the projects have arisen relating to the completion of the
improvements. In substance, the contractors seek compensation in addition to the
amounts specified under the contractual arrangements to which the Township is a
party. The litigation involving D’ Agostini has progressed to the early stages of
discovery. A trial date has not been scheduled. D’Agostini has not yet qualified the
amount sought by it in the litigation, but the amount is believed to exceed $5
million. The claims asserted by Walbridge and DeAngelis are the subject of
separate litigation also pending in Wayne County Circuit Court. The amount
currently sought by Walbridge and DeAngelis in total is estimated to be in excess of
$3 million.

The Township will continue to respond to the claims against them by vigorously
contesting any liability. However, because of the early stage of the litigation, the
attorney is unable to render an evaluation of the likelihood of an unfavorable
outcome or an estimate of the amount or range of potential loss.

Note 13 - Joint Venture

The Township is a member of the 33rd District Court (the “Court”), which
provides judicial services to the member communities. The Court receives its
operating revenue principally from fines and fees, in addition to annual funding
contributions from member communities. During the current year, the Township
received approximately $28,470 from the Court, representing the Township’s
share of the Court’s net activity. The Township is unaware of any circumstances
that would cause an additional benefit or burden to the participating communities in
the near future, other than the fluctuation of case loads, which impacts the
Township’s share of the Court debt. Complete financial statements for the Court
can be obtained from the administrative offices at: 19000 Van Horn Road,
Woodhaven, M| 48183. '

During 1995, the Township and various other surrounding communities entered
into an installment purchase agreement with a bank on behalf of the Court. The
communities collectively agreed to finance the construction of an addition to the
Court for a total cost of approximately $2,000,000.

47
HUNGERFORDE,CO.




Township of Grosse lle

Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note I3 - jJoint Venture (Continued)

The intention of the Court is to make the monthly interest and principal payments
on behalf of the communities. In the event that payments are not received by the
bank when due, each community will be responsible for its proportionate share of
the debt based on Court usage. The Township’s original estimated share of this
debt was anticipated to be 4.12 percent but has been averaging approximately
3 percent to 4 percent over the past several years. The Township's portion of the
related building addition, their equity interest, and debt obligation in the Court has
been deemed insignificant by the Township and has not been recorded in the
statement of net assets as of March 31, 2007.

For each community, the “share” is the percentage of total amount of any payment
due equal to a fraction, the numerator of which is the total cases handled by the
Court for that community from January | to December 31 of the year immediately
preceding the year in which the payment is due, and the denominator of which is
the total number of cases handled by the Court for the same time period. The
share of the Township through December 31, 2006 approximated 4.01 percent.
Principal and interest payments made by the Court on the Township’s behalf during
the year totaled $3,431 and $2,762, respectively. The Court has set aside certain
funds of the Township in anticipation of its future debt requirements. The
Township has not recorded these amounts held by the Court since it is not
anticipated that they will be made available currently, nor can they be used for
purposes other than debt retirement.

Note 14 - Other Postemployment Benefits

The Township has elected to provide postemployment health, dental, vision, and
life insurance benefits to all eligible full-time retired employees and their
beneficiaries. The government pays the full cost of coverage for these benefits.
The Township includes pre-Medicare retirees and their dependents in its insured
health care plan, with no contribution required by the participant (other than
specific co-pays). The Township purchases Medicare supplemental insurance for
retirees eligible for Medicare. Currently, 30 retirees are eligible for post-
employment health benefits. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2007, the
Township made payments for postemployment health benefits of $366,156. The
government obtains health care coverage through private insurers.
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Township of Grosse llie

' Notes to Financial Statements
March 31, 2007

Note 14 - Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Upcoming Reporting Change - The Governmental Accounting Standards Board
has recently released Statement Number 45, Accounting and Reporting by Employers
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The new pronouncement
provides guidance for local units of government in recognizing the cost of retiree
health care, as well as any “other” postemployment benefits (other than pensions).
The new rules will cause the government-wide financial statements to recognize
the cost of providing retiree health care coverage over the working life of the
employee, rather than at the time the health care premiums are paid. The new
pronouncement is effective for the year ending March 31, 2009.
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Township of Grosse lle

Revenues
Property taxes
Intergovernmental revenue
Licenses and permits
Charges for services
Rental income
Fines and forfeitures
Interest income
Other revenue

Total revenues

Expenditures

* General government:
Township board
Township supervisor
Township manager
Elections
Township clerk
Finance department
Property tax administration
Board of Review
Township treasurer
Township grounds and maintenance
Community development
Cable commission
Professional services
General expenditures

Total general government
33rd District Court
Public safety:
Police

Animal control
Auxiliary police

Total public safety
Total expenditures

Excess of Revenues Over Expenditures

Required Supplemental Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund

Year Ended March 31, 2007

Original Amended Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Amended Budget
$ 3083504 $ 3083504 $ 3,097,256 $ 13,752
865,491 865,491 898,118 32,627
384,480 384,480 411,488 27,008
600 600 220 (380)
22,800 22,800 22,167 (633)
87,747 87,747 121,775 34,028
80,000 80,000 234,722 154,722
255510 255,510 263,481 7,971
4,780,132 4,780,132 5,049,227 269,095
43,602 43,602 36,158 7,444
28,624 28,624 20,617 8,007
224,050 224,050 211,352 12,698
41,675 41,675 22,298 19,377
136,996 136,996 135,469 1,527
261,835 261,835 228,215 33,620
96,038 96,038 82,844 13,194
2,200 2,200 2,240 (40)
147,192 147,192 150,505 (3,313)
211,881 211,881 234,149 (22,268)
263,480 263,480 224,124 39,356
105,000 105,000 102,148 2,852
90,500 90,500 412,462 (321,962)
128,115 128,115 129,692 (1,577)
1,781,188 1,781,188 1,992,273 (211,085)
85747 85,747 86,287 (540)
2,700,059 2,700,059 2,733,162 (33,103)
12,100 12,100 8,451 3,649
13,444 13,444 8,897 4,547
2,725,603 2,725,603 2,750,510 (24,907)
4,592,538 4,592,538 4,829,070 (236,532)
187,594 187,594 220,157 32,563
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Township of Grosse lle

'Required Supplemental Information

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund (Continued)
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Original Amended Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Amended Budget
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Operating transfers in $ 60,621 $ 60,621 $ 60,621 $ -
Operating transfers out (248,215) (248,215) (247,865) 350
Total other financing sources
(uses) (187,594) (187,594) _(187,244) 4 350
Excess of Reyenues and Other Financing
Sources Over Expenditures and Other
Uses - - 32,913 32913
Fund Balance - April |, 2006 3,558,601 3,558,601 3,558,601 » -
Fund Balance - March 31, 2007 $ 3,558,601 $ 3,558,601 $ 3,591,514 $ 32,913
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Township of Grosse lle

m . .
Required Supplemental Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Major Special Revenue Fund - Road Improvement
Year Ended March 31, 2007
Variance with
Original Amended Amended
Budget Budget Actual Budget
Revenue
Property taxes $ -3 - $ 243§ 243
Interest income 50,000 50,000 215,014 165,014
Total revenue 50,000 50,000 215,257 165,257
Expenditures - General government 4,290,000 4,290,000 278,324 4,011,676
Excéss of Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (4,240,000)  (4,240,000) (63,067) 4,176,933
Fund Balance - Beginning of year 4,002,347 4,002,347 4,002,347 -
Fund Balance - End of year $ (237,653) $ (237,653) $ 3,939,280 $ 4,176,933
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Township of Grosse lle

" Other Supplemental Information
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
March 31, 2007

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Total
Nonmajor
Special Revenue Debt Service Capital Governmental
Funds Funds Projects Funds Funds
Assets '
Cash and investments $ 5951,757 $ 957,515 $ 336,391 $ 7,245,663
Receivables - Net 179,986 120,918 - 300,904
Due from other funds 20,798 - 139 20,937
Due from other governmental units 16,576 - - 16,576
Prepaid expenses and other assets 625 - - 625
Total assets $ 6,169,742 $ 1,078,433 $ 336,530 $ 7,584,705
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 256,018 $ -3 - $ 256,018
Accrued and other liabilities 48,104 - - 48,104
Due to other funds 159,882 - - 159,882
Deferred revenue 1,515 89,571 - 91,086
Total liabilities 465,519 89,571 . §55,090
Fund Balances
Reserved - 988,862 - 988,862
Unreserved - Undesignated 5,704,223 - 336,530 6,040,753
Total fund balances ‘ ._5,704,223 988,86_2 _ 336,530 7,029,615
Total liabilities and fund
balances $ 6,169,742 $ 1,078,433 $ 336,530 $ 7,584,705

53
HUNGERFORDE,CO.




Township of Grosse lie

Other Supplemental Information
Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year Ended March 31, 2007

Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Debt Total Nonmajor
Revenue Service Capital Project Governmental
Funds Funds _ Fu_nd_s Funds
Revenue
Property taxes $ 2532842 $§ 468574 $ - % 3,001,416
Special assessments - 23,418 - 23,418
Charges for services 128,957 12,600 - 141,557
Ambulance fees 97,515 - - 97,515
Rental income 121,380 - - 121,380
Federal sources 215,387 - - 215,387
Interest income 191,966 31,592 12,308 235,866
Other 86,990 - 10,352 97,342
Total revenue 3,375,037 536,184 22,660 3,933,881
Expenditures
Current:
General government 198,538 - - 198,538
Public safety 1,330,443 - - 1,330,443
Cultural and recreation 655,286 - - 655,286
Capital outlay - - - -
Debt service - 584,338 - 584,338
Total expenditures 2,184,267 584,338 - 2,768,605
Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures 1,190,770 (48,154) 22,660 1,165,276
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfersin 27,500 172,075 - 199,575
Transfers out (70,621) - - (70,621
Total other financing
sources {uses) (43,121) 172,075 - 128,954
Net Change in Fund Balances 1,147,649 123,921 22,660 1,294,230
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 4,556,574 864,941 313,870 5,735,385
Fund Balances - End of year $ 5704223 $ 988,862 $ 336,530 $ 7,029,615
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Township of Grosse lle

Assets

Cash and investments

Receivables - Net

Due from other funds

Due from other governmental units
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued and other liabilities
Due to other funds
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities
Fund Balances - Undesignated

Total liabilities and fund balances

Public Safety

Building Drug Law Fire

Maintenance Enforcement  Fire Operating Equipment
$ 43,888 $ 230,919 $ 1,226,636 $ 866,519
- - 63,745 20,461

- - 525 -
$ 43,888 $ 230,919 $ 1,290,906 $ 886,980
$ - 3 2,927 $ 51,884 $ 107,584

- - 24,480 -

- - 84,121 -
- 2,927 160,485 107,584
43,888 227,992 1,130,421 779,396
$ 43,888 $ 230,919 $ 1,290,906 $ 886,980
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Other Supplemental information
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

March 31, 2007

Drain and Total Nonmajor

Recreation  Historical Block Grant Storm Open Space  Special Revenue
‘ Fund Farm Library Fun‘d‘ _Fund Bicycle Path Maintenance Fund Funds

$ 260,632 $ 97,207 $ 344923 $ 7,798 $ 789,244 $ 977,924 $ 1,106067 $ 595,757

20,751 77 5,404 - 7,147 18,864 43,537 179,986

20,798 - - - - - - 20,798

- - - 16,576 - - - 16,576

100 - - - . . - 625

$ 302,281 $9‘7,28_4 $ 350,327 $ 24,374 $ 796,391 $ 996,788 $ 1,149,604 $ 6,169,742

$ 14679 $ 526 $ 77795 $ - 3 - % 623 $ - 3 256,018

23,624 - - - - - - 48,104

50,221 1,900 - 23,640 - - - 159,882

1,515 - - - - - - 1,515

90,039 2,426 77,795 23,640 - 623 - 465,519

212,242 94,858 272,532 734 796,391 996,165 1,149,604 5,704,223

$ ;oz,zal $_’97,2_.84 $ 350,327 $ 24,374 $ 796,391 $ 996,788 $ 1,149,604 $ 6,169,742
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Township of Grosse lle

wm

Revenue
Property taxes
Charges for services
Ambulance fees
Rental income
Federal sources
Interest income
Other

Total revenue
Expenditures - Current
General government

Public safety
Cultural and recreation

Total expenditures

Excess of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Beginning of year

Fund Balances - End of year

Public Safety
Building Drug Law

Maintenance  Enforcement Fire Operating Fire Equipment
$ - $ - $ 935331 $§ 320594

- . 97.515 -

39,972 - - -

- 193,189 - -
2,530 7,773 3,710 31,655
- 5,903 - 52,200
42,502 206,865 1,064,556 404,449
79,888 62,295 919,375 268,885
79,888 62,295 919,375 268,885
(37,386) 144,570 145,181 135,564

20,000 - - -

- - (70,621) -

20,000 - (70,621) -
(17,386) 144,570 74,560 135,564
61,274 83,422 1,055,861 643,832
$ 43,888 $ 227,992 $ 1,130,421 $§ 779,396
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Other Supplemental Information

Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2007

Total
Drain and Nonmajor
Recreation Historical Block Grant Storm Open Space Special

Fund . Fgrm _ Library Fund , Fund Bicycle Path Maintenance Fund Revenue Funds
$ 315778 % - $ 63240 % - $ 63,130 $ 203,114 $ 631,655 $ 2,532,842
128,957 - - - - - - 128,957
- - - - - - - 97,515
3,678 77,730 - - - - - 121,380

- - - 22,198 - - - 215,387

1,644 3,790 16,846 - 36,221 38,367 21,430 191,966
28,887 - - - - - - 86,990
478,944 8!,$20 80,086 22,198 99,351 241,481 _ 653,085 3,375,037
- - - 22,198 6,315 59,073 110,952 198,538

- - - - - - - 1,330,443
439,627 54,120 161,539 - - - - 655,286
_43?,627 54,120 161,539 22,198 6,315 59,073 110,952 2,184,267
39,317 27_,400 (81.453) - 93,036 182,408 542,133 1,190,770
7,500 - - - - - - 27,500
- - - - - - - (70,621
7,?00 - - _ - - - » - (43,12)
46,817 27,400 (81,453) - 93,036 182,408 . 542,133 1,147,649
l65,'-§2_5 67,458 353,985 734 703,355 813,757 607,471 4,556,574

$212242 $94858 § 272532 $ 734 $ 796391 §$ 996,165 § 1,149,604 $ 5,704,223
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Township of Greosse lle

Assets

Cash and investments
Receivables - Net

Total assets
Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities - Deferred revenue
Eund Balances - Reserved

Total liabilities and
fund balances

Sanitary
Drain Public Safety 1993 SAD 1995 SAD 1995 Series B
District  Building Debt Debt Debt SAD ..Debt
$ 288368 $ 183310 $ 153450 $ 37,750 79,419
13,707 14,699 - - -
$ 302,075 $ 198,009 $ 153,450 $ 37,750 79,4|9
$ - 3 -8 S .
302,075 198,009 153,450 37,750 79,419
$ 302,075 $ 198,009 $ 153,450 $ 37,750 779,4l9
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Other Supplemental Information
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Debt Service Funds
March 31, 2007

Total
Nonmajor
1995 Series C {996 SAD 1998 SAD Building Debt Service
SAD Debt Debt Debt Authority Funds
$ 27 $ 67438 $ 147394 $ 359§ 957,515
- - 92512 - 120918
$ 27 $ 67,438 $ 239,906 $ 359 $ 1,078,433
$ - 8 - $ 89571 % - $ 8957t
27 67,438 150,335 359 988,862
$ 27 $ 67,438 $ 239,906 $ 359 $ 1,078,433
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Township of Grosse lle

Revenue
Property taxes
Special assessments
Charges for services
Interest income

Total revenue
Expendityres - Debt service

Excess of Revenue Qver (Under)
Expenditures

Other Financing Sources
Transfers in

Net Change in Fund Balanges
Fund Balances - Beginning of year

Fund Balances - End of year

Sanitary

Drain Public Safety 1993 SAD 1995 SAD 1995 Series
District  Building Debt Debt Debt B SAD Debt

$ 224686 $ 243,888 $ - 3 - $ -

12,600 - - - -
2,621 2,298 6,916 1,653 3,543
239,907 246,186 6,916 1,653 3,543

171,432 193,490 - - -
68,475 52,696 6,916 1,653 3,543
68,475 52,696 6,916 1,653 3,543
233,600 145,313 146,534 36,097 75,876
$ 302,075 $ 198,009 $ 153,450 $ 37,750 $ 79,419
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' ' Other Supplemental information

Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Debt Service Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2007

Total
1995 Series Nonmajor
CSAD 1996 SAD 1998 SAD Building Debt Service
Debt Debt Debt _Authority Funds
$ - $ - $ - - $ 468574
- - 23,418 - 23418
- - - - 12,600
- 2,999 11,477 85 31,592
- 2,999 34,895 85 536,184
- - 46,991 172,425 584,338
- 2,999 (12,096) (172,340) (48,154)
- - - 172,075 172,075
- 2,999 (12,096) (265) 123,921
_ 27 64,439 162,431 __ 624 864,941

$ 27 $ 67,438 $150,335 $ 359 $ 988,862
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Township of Grosse le

Assets

Cash and investments
Due from other funds

Total assets

Fund Balances

Fund Balances - Undesignated

Other Supplemental Information
GCombining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds
March 31, 2007

Total
Nonmajor

Capital

Capital Project 1998 SAD 1999 SAD Projects

Improvements _Construction Construction  Funds
$ 12,372 $ 103,921 $ 220098 $ 336,391
139 - - 139
$ 12,511 $ 103,921 $ 220,098 $ 336,530
$ 12,511 $ 103,921 $ 220,098 $ 336,530
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Township of Grosse lle

~ Other Supplemental Information

Combining Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

Year Ended March 31, 2007

Total
Nonmajor
Capital
Capital Project 1998 SAD 1999 SAD Projects
Impro.vevme_nts Construction Construction Funds
Revenue
Intergst income $ 913 $ 4661 $ 6,734 $ 12,308
Other _ 10,352 - _ - 10,352
Total revenue 11,265 4,661 6,734 22,660
Expenditures - Capital outlay - - - -
Excess of Revenue Over
Expenditures 11,265 _ 4,66]| 6,734 22,660
Net Change in Fund Balances | 11,265 4,661 6,734 22,660
Fund Balances - Beginning of year 246 99,260 213,364 313,870
Fund Balances - End of year $ 12,511 $ 103,921 $ 220,098 $ 336,530
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H U NGE Rl:O R D&CO Certified Public Accountants

A Professional Corporation

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANGE
AND QTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Trustees
Township of Grosse lle, Michigan
Wayne County, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007, which collectively comprise
the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
September 26, 2007. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of
Grosse lle, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
gffectiveness of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s internal control over financial reporting.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in
the normal course of performmg their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process or report financial data reliably in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a
misstatement of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s financial statements, that is more than inconsequential,
will not be prevented or detected by the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s internal control.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that g material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by
the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to he material weaknesses, as defined above.

-1-
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Township of Grosse lle, Michigan
Page 2

Gompliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect gn
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisipns was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to the management of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan in a
separate letter dated September 26, 2007.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, the Board of
Trustees and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

September 26, 2007
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I—I U NG‘E Rl:O Q D&ZS:O Certified Public Accountants

A Professional Corporation

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Trustees
Township of Grosse lle, Michigan
Wayne County, Michigan

Cg' mpliance

We have audited the compliance of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended March 31, 2007. The Township of
Graosse lle, Michigan's major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the

accompanying Scheduie of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulatlons contracts and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the Township of
Grosse lle, Michigan's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Township of Grosse lie,
Michigan's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program oceurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal
determination on the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan's compliance with those requirements.

in our opinion, the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended March 31, 2007.

InteLnal Control Over Comgl.iance

The management of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan's internal
control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s internal
contral over compliance.

A control deficiency in an entity's internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent
or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the
entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that noncompliange
with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented
or detected by the entity’s internal control.

-3- .
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A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be significant
deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that
we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information
of the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan as of and for the year ended March 31, 2007, and have issued our report
thereon dated September 26, 2007. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s basic financial statements. The
accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. '

The Township of Grosse lle, Michigan’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. We did not audit the Township of Grosse lle,
Michigan's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the audit committee, the Board of

Trustees and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than thése specified parties.

%W««qu.

September 26, 2007
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TOWNSHIP OF GRQSSE ILE, MICHIGAN

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

CFDA Award Federal
Federal Agency/Pass-Through Agency/Program Title Number _ Amount Expenditures
Major Program
U.8. Environmental Protection Agency
Passed Through Michigan Department of Environmental Quality
Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds 66.458
Project No. 5203 - 02 $ 4,383,888 % 71,569
Project No. 5203 - 03 4,428,052 1,472,929
Total Major Program 8,811,940 1,544,498
Other Federal Awards
U.8. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed Through Wayne County Community Development Division
Community Development Block Grants 14.219
Project No. 05-09-05A - Senior Citizen Staffing and Services 22,000 5,621
Project No. 06-09-05A - Senior Service 18,400 15,177
Projecl No. 06-09-05A - Senior Alliance 1400 1,400
Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 41,800 22,198
U.8. Department of Justice
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program 16.607
Project No. N/A - 2006 10,250 459
Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force 16.UNKNOWN
Project No. N/A - 2005-06 15,144 820
Project No. N/A - 2006-07 15,573 _9,342
Total Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force 30,717 10,162
Passed Through Downriver Community Conference
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants 16.710
Project No. PT 06-15 14,100 12,822
Project No. PT 06-15 Equipment 11,586 11,586
Project No. PT-07-24 13,202 1,409
Total Passed Through Downriver Community Conference 38,888 25817
Total U.S. Department of Justice 79,855 36,438
U.S. Department of Transportation
Passed Through Michigan Department of State Police
Alcohol Traffic Safety and Drunk Driving Prevention Incentive Grant 20.601
Project No. JJ-06-01 28,971 20,967
Project No. AL-07-07 30,000 4,258
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 58,971 25,225
Total Other Federal Awards 180,626 83,861

Total Federal Awards

See notes to '_schedule of expenditures of federal awards

-5-

$ 8,992,566 $ 1,628,359
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TOWNSHIP OF GROSSE ILE, MICHIGAN
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

NOTE 1 -

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes federal grant activity of the Township of
Grosse lle, Michigan and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and
Non-Profit Organizations”.

NOTE 2 -

Major programs are identified in the Summary of Auditor's Results section of the Schedule of Findings and
Questioned Costs.

NOTE 3 -

The program with total funds expended of $300,000 or more (Type A programs) was Capitalization Grants for State
Revolving Funds. This Type A program was not considered low-risk and was required to be tested as a major
program. The Township qualified as a low-risk auditee. Therefore, 25% of total federal awards expended were
tested as major programs. The Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds program also satisfied this
requirement.
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TOWNSHIP OF GROSSE ILE, MICHIGAN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

Section | - Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued: (unqualified, qualified, adverse, or disclaimer)

Internal control over financial reporting:

. Material weakness(es) identified? yes _X__no
o Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? yes _x___none reported
Nongompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X__no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

. Material weakness(es) identified? yes X __ho

. Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not

considered to be material weakness(es)? yes _x  none reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: (ungualified, qualified, adverse, or
disclaimer) o

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with section 510(a) of

Circular A-1337 yes X__no

identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster

66.458 , o Capitalization Grants for State Revolving Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between

type A and type B programs: $300.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X__yes ___no
-7-
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TOWNSHIP OF GROSSE ILE, MICHIGAN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

(Continued)

Section Il - Financial Statement Findings

No matters were reported.

Section lll - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.
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TOWNSHIP OF GROSSE ILE, MICHIGAN

SUMMARY SCHEDUL.E OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2007

FEDERAL PROGRAM _ ‘ ‘ FINDINGS

QUESTIONED
_COsTS

Prior Year Finding

None.
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LETTER OF COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

MARCH 31, 2007
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H U N G‘E IQI:OIQ D&CO Certified Public Accountants

A Professional Corporation

Board of Trustees
Township of Grosse lle
Wayne County, Michigan

We have audited the financial statements of the Township of Grosse Ile for the year ended March 31,
2007. As part of our audit, we reviewed the Township’s accounting procedures and system of
internal control.

The objectives of an internal control system are to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance as
to 1) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, 2) proper division
of duties between various employees to provide a reasonable check upon transactions and, 3) the
reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability for
assets.

The following comments and recommendations are presented for your consideration:
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

For a number of years we have commented on the Township’s providing health, dental and life
insurance benefits to full-time employees upon retirement. The benefits are known as “Other
Postemployment Benefits,” or OPEB. The Township’s contributions for OPEB are currently
financed on a pay-as-you-go basis.

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board recently issued Statement No. 45, Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which
addresses how local governments should account for and report their costs and obligations related to
OPEB. The statement generally requires that local governments account for and report the annual
cost of OPEB and the outstanding obligations in essentially the same manner as they currently do for
pensions. OPEB costs will be based on actuarially determined amounts that, if paid on an ongoing
basis, would provide sufficient resources to pay benefits as they come due. Medium-sized
governments are required to implement the requirements of Statement 45 for periods beglnmng after
December 15, 2006, with earlier implementation encouraged.

13305 Reeck Road, Southgate, Michigan 48195 (734) 246-9600 FAX (734) 246-8349
Members - American Institute of Certified Public Accountants - Michigan Association of Certified Public Accountants



Board of Trustees
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DPVW - INVENTORY

A complete physical inventory of supplies, parts and materials at the various storage facilities has not
been taken in several years and there has been no change to the inventory balance on the general
ledger. An inventory is required to maintain proper internal control over the items and should be
taken at the end of each fiscal year. '

We again recommend that the DPW establish procedures to ensure that an inventory is taken as of
March 31 of each year.

FUND DEFICITS

As of March 31, 2006, the Township had accumulated fund deficits in several individual funds. The
Township is in violation of Public Act 621 of 1978. In accordance with Public Act 621 of 1978, we
recommended that the Township formulate deficit reduction plans and submit them to the Michigan
Department of Treasury.

The Township’s fund deficits and corrective action plans were as follows: The Downtown
Development Authority and the Brownfield Authority have deficits of $281,360 and $107,156,
respectively, which will be eliminated in future years as property tax collections are received.
Water’s Edge Country Club has an unrestricted fund deficit of $260,1787 that will be eliminated in
future years with the reorganization of the entire operation, including staff reductions, consolidations
and rate restructuring that will hopefully increase membership and facility usage. The Grosse Ile
Bridge has an unrestricted fund deficit of $285,883 that will be eliminated in future years through the
sale of general obligation capital improvement bonds or transfer from the general fund. The actions
" of the Township are dependent on the outcome of a pending court case.

Action Taken: The accumulated deficits in the Brownfield Authority and the Grosse Ile Bridge
were completely eliminated during the year ended March 31, 2007. The accumulated deficit in the
Downtown Development Authority (due to GASB 34 implementation) was reduced to $217,934 with
the 2006 tax levy. The deficit in the Water’s Edge Country Club increased to $279,709. These
deficits will continue to be eliminated in future years as outlined above. The Township’s corrective
action plan remains in effect as outlined above.

HUNGERFORD&,CO.
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CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS

During the years ended March 31, 2005 and 2006, there was a capital project fund that had no
activity except for interest income earned on its bank account. As of March 31, 2006, the 1998
Special Assessment District Construction Fund had an accumulated fund balance of $99,260. The
project for which this fund was established has been completed. We recommended that the assets
and related fund balance in this capital project fund be transferred to the related debt service fund
and the fund closed.

Action Taken: None. We again recommend that the 1998 Special Assessment District
Construction Fund, which now has an accumulated fund balance of $103,921, be closed and the
assets be transferred to the related debt service fund.

During the last several years, the 1999 Special Assessment District Construction Fund also had no
activity except for interest income earned on its bank account, which resulted in a cumulative fund
balance of $213,364 at March 31, 2006. The related project is complete. However, the Township is
still anticipating a final bill of approximately $100,000 from a vendor for the last phase of the
construction work. We recommended that the Township actively research its account status with this
vendor to resolve the matter in a timely fashion. Once this issue is resolved, the assets and related
fund balance in this capital project fund should be transferred to the related debt service fund and the
fund closed.

Action Taken: None. The 1999 Special Assessment District Construction Fund has a cumulative
fund balance of $220,098 at March 31, 2007. We again recommend that the status of any
outstanding bills be resolved and that the assets and related fund balance in this capital project fund
be transferred to the related debt service fund and the fund closed.

During the year ended March 31, 2006, there was a capital project fund that had no activity except
for interest income earned on its bank account. As of March 31, 2006, the Grosse Ile/Trenton 98
Sewer Plant Project Fund had an accumulated fund balance of $35,338. The project for which this
fund was established has been completed. The expenditures for this project exceeded the bond
proceeds and the additional costs were covered by the Department of Public Works fund. Therefore,
we recommend that the assets and related fund balance remaining in this capital project fund be
transferred to Department of Public Works fund as reimbursement and the fund closed.

Action Taken: None. The Grosse Ile/Trenton 98 Sewer Plant Project Fund has a cumulative fund
balance of $35,871 at March 31, 2007. We again recommend that the assets and related fund balance
in this capital project fund be transferred to the Department of Public Works fund and the fund
closed. Subsequently, on June 26, 2007, the bank account was closed and the funds transferred to
the Department of Public Works fund.
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DEBT SERVICE FUNDS

As of March 31, 2006, the Township had four special assessment debt funds in which the final bond
payments have been made and the total amount collected on the assessments was more than 5% of
the original tax roll. For the 1993 Special Assessment District Debt, the 1995 Special Assessment
District Debt, the 1995 Series B Special Assessment District Debt and the 1996 Special Assessment
District Debt, the Township is required to refund this surplus to the persons who are owners of
record on the date of the passage of the Township resolution ordering the refund. Any surplus less
than 5% may be transferred to the Township’s general fund.

We recommended that the Township pass the appropriate resolution and issue the required refunds to
the property owners in a timely fashion. In addition, any surplus below 5% should be transferred to
the general fund and the debt service funds closed.

Action Taken: None. We again recommend that the Township implement the proper procedures to
dispose of the surplus funds and close the debt service funds.

SUMMARY

Record keeping procedures are fundamentally sound and reliable. The employees responsible for

these functions were cooperative in answering questions and providing documentation required
during our audit. ‘

We would like to thank the Board for this opportunity to again serve as your auditors. As you know,
we are available throughout the year to answer questions or work on special projects at your request.

W¢C¢.

September 26, 2007
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